




Background And Rationale

I. The Current Arts Funding Provision Fails to State an Actionable Goal.

Our chief concern is the dilution of the arts funding provisions set forth in ART.6. The original recommendation of the
Arts Subcommittee of the Community Vitality Working Group included three relevant provisions:

"Provide robust support for the arts through public and private funding" (Original Goal 3)
"Provide dedicated City funding for the arts and their continued growth" (Policy 3.a)
"Provide supportive services and other incentives to facilitate the delivery and enjoyment of the arts, culture
and arts education." (Policy 3.b)

The recommendations were not, in concept, controversial. However, their language has been substantially weakened
over the course of many months of Community Vitality, GPAC and Planning Commission hearings. As currently worded,
the arts funding "goal" no longer articulates any identifiable objective with respect to arts funding; rather it merely
asserts the City's passive "support [for] adequate public and private funding." ART.6.

We appreciate and respect the importance of providing essential budgetary discretion in a long-term general plan. This
was the apparent concern of some Planning Commissioners who mistakenly asserted that the 2040 Plan did not use
active verbs like "ensure" because such language might unduly hamper the City's discretion. In fact, however, our
review of the current draft reveals that the 2040 Plan tends appropriately to state its goals-including those relating to
funding-clearly and unequivocally using precisely this type of active language.' The language we recommend for the
funding goal ("Ensure adequate public and private funding...") is typical and accurately articulates the intended
aspiration.

The community values of the 2040 Plan Draft include "the arts and our artistic community and its on-going and lasting
contribution to our culture, heritage, history, character, economic vitality and quality of life." See also, CV.2; Economic
Well-being at p. 58. We have repeatedly presented evidence of the profound economic impact of the arts sector on our
local economy, and ofthe strong community support for including arts funding in the General Plan. (Additional copies of
reports and surveys available on request.) If the General Plan aims to sustain Mill Valley's cultural legacy and resources,
and their important contribution to our economic vitality in the coming decades, it must unequivocally embrace the goal
of providing such funding as is necessary and adequate to do so.

As currently written, the funding provisions at Art.6 fail to articulate any actionable goal. Our recommended revision
will clarify the City's aspiration to achieve adequate funding to accomplish the aims of the 2040 Plan. Budgeting
authorities will retain ample discretion to determine what is adequate and necessary in the context of the City's
resources and overall objectives. We urge the City Council to adopt the recommended revision.

1 As a general matter, the 2040 Plan goals appropriately employ active verbs like "create", "provide", "establish",
"implement" and, yes, "ensure." Examples of "ensure" can be found at M.2, HZ.4-1, PS.2. In addition, there are
numerous funding goals that call upon the City to, among other things, "prioritize" Capital Improvement funds (e.g.,
M.18-1), "reauthorize" and allocate special taxes (e.g., M.18-2), "seek private funding and grants" (e.g., LU.8; M.1l-2),
"provide budget support" (M.2-2) and "provide adequate funding" (M.12-1) for specified purposes. PS.2-3 is even more
specific directing the City to incorporate certain personnel and equipment into the annual Capital Improvement Program
and Operating Budget . The goal of CL.4-2 is to "plan and fund" its target services. In addition, many provisions establish
directives that, while not mentioning funding, will necessarily require a financial investment. E.g., HZ.2 (maintain
adequate staff, facilities and equipment); M.ll (establish and maintain new transportation systems).
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II. The Shuttle Provision Erroneously Omits Service to Cultural Facilities from its Intended Purposes.

There was much excitement at the Arts Subcommittee level about the possibility of an arts shuttle that would promote
and support the City's artistic resources and identity, unite geographically distinct neighborhoods, reduce vehicle traffic
and alleviate parking concerns. For example, the monthly First Tuesday ArtWalk includes juried art shows at City Hall and
the surrounding area and at the Community Center; a shuttle would encourage attendance at these exhibitions and
alleviate the need for attendees to drive to and park at the distinct locations. High-traffic events such as the Mill Valley
Film Festival and the Mill Valley Fall Arts Festival would be well served by a shuttle as would major venues (e.g., the
Throckmorton Theatre, the Sweetwater, Marin Theatre Company, O'Hanlon Center for the Arts) most of which have
little or no designated parking. The lack of regular public transportation and the limited parking availability discourage
attendance and burden adjacent residential areas. Mill Valley's artistic resources provide a unifying sense of place and
opportunities for community interaction. A shuttle could help to maximize these benefits by facilitating access and
participation throughout the community while alleviating traffic, parking and environmental burdens.

For these reasons among others, the Subcommittee included a shuttle recommendation in the notes under its original
funding goal. Planning staff said that a number of committees were advocating for a shuttle and indicated they would
combine the various ideas in a single shuttle goal in the Mobility section. As that provision currently reads however, the
idea that the shuttle would serve or support Mill Valley's cultural resources has been lost. See M.15. We recognize and
support the substantial benefits of a multi purpose shuttle to local residents, merchants and the environment. We ask
that the City Council add our recommended language to the shuttle provision to ensure that the benefits of also serving
our arts resources are not overlooked and that the arts sector will have a voice in the development of any shuttle
service.

Conclusion
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Again, we wish to thank everyone who has participated in developing and supporting the arts and culture provisions in
the 2040 Plan draft. We are proud of the commitment to the future of the arts that it represents. We hope the City
Council will adopt the revisions recommended above to ensure the clarity of purpose, accuracy and effectiveness of the
arts and culture provisions. .

Teresa Rea
Member, 2040 Arts Subcommittee
Mill Valley Arts Commission

Sincerely,

~qtb-~ ~~
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